
  

MINUTES 

PLANNING COMMISSION  

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

154 SOUTH EIGHTH STREET 

GROVER BEACH, CALIFORNIA 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 11, 2005  

 6:30 P.M. 
 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER: 6:30 p.m. 
 

FLAG SALUTE:       Commissioner Bright   
 

ROLL CALL:    Present:  Commissioners Bright, Keith, Luce,   
   Vice Chair Marshall and Chair Versaw  
 
   Absent: Commissioner Peterson  
 
   Staff:  Planner III Ray Hetherington  
    Planner I Sean Nicholas  
    Community Development Director George Hansen  
    City Manager Richard Warne 
    City Attorney Larry Donaldson  
    City Engineer Jim Garing  
    Administrative Secretary Sharon Chernoff  
      
PUBLIC COMMENTS:  None. 
 

CORRESPONDENCE: Announcements read by Chair Versaw including Visioning Workshop on 
October 24, 2005; Letter from “Concerned Grover Beach Citizen” regarding speed bumps on 
Longbranch Street between 10th and 14th Streets;  and Notice of Joint Session of the City of Grover 
Beach City Council and Grover Beach Planning Commission on November 14, 2005 at 6:30 PM. 
Commissioner Keith commented on the letter signed only “Concerned Grover Beach Citizen”.  
He indicated that when the letter is anonymous and unsigned as this one is, it is hardly worth the 
time to review it. Chair Versaw asked Community Development Director George Hansen if he was  
able to respond to this letter, and Mr. Hansen replied that without name or address, he was not able 
to respond. He further indicated this was not the first such unsigned letter received regarding this 
issue.    
 

CONSENT AGENDA: 
 

1) Approval of minutes of Regular Planning Commission meetings of September 13,  

2005 (Recommendation: Staff recommends the Planning Commission approve the 

minutes as submitted.)   
 
On a Motion by Commissioner Bright,  seconded by Vice Chair Marshall, the September 13, 2005 
Minutes were approved with the following corrections: On Page 4, Paragraph  beginning “Vice Chair 
Marshall…” should be corrected to read “Commissioner Keith…”; and on Page 9, Item #4, the 
initiator of the Motion should be correctly identified as Commissioner Peterson. The Minutes were  
unanimously approved with these corrections.  

 
 



Planning Commission Minutes – September 13, 2005 
Page 2  
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS: 
 
2)  Architectural Approval, Application No. 05-006, Van Parkinson, 338 North 6th Street,   

(APN 060-151-023) 
 
A request to grant an Architectural Approval to construct a 1,951 square foot single family  
residence in the Single Family Residential (R-1) Zone.  
  
The staff report was presented by Planner I Sean Nicholas.  
 
The applicant is requesting Architectural Approval to construct a Single Family residence in the 
Single Family Residential (R-1) Zone, north of Grand Avenue. The project is located at 338 North 6th 
Street, APN 060-151-023. Because this home is in the R-1 Zoning District, north of Grand Avenue, 
staff determined that a visual impact could occur, and required story poles be erected. Once this 
was done, staff assessed the impact. While some views will be impacted, no views will be  
completely or needlessly  blocked by the project. The project was noticed in accordance with the 
Brown Act, and is categorically exempt from CEQA (California Environmental Quality Act). 
Staff is recommending that the Planning Commission adopt Resolution 05-081 granting 
Architectural Approval for this project. 
 
Commissioner Keith commented regarding the deterioration of the story poles. The stakes and 
guide wires supporting the story poles had pulled out and the story poles are taller than the red tape 
at the top indicating the height. His comment addressed the integrity of the erection of the poles,  
and the subsequent difficulty in assessing the impact. 
 
Vice Chair Marshall requested clarification on the conditions, and particularly Air Pollution Control  
District condition APCD-1, which reads: “Temporary dust control shall be employed during all 
construction. Watering down methods used to control dust shall not erode the soil. Downhill cuts or 
fills shall be lined with straw bales to control erosion from runoff. If asbestos is found on-site, it shall 
be removed and disposed of in accordance with the requirements set forth by the San Luis Obispo 
County Air Pollution Control District.” Vice Chair Marshall felt that “straw bales” should be stricken,  
and “best management practices”, and the third sentence, referring to asbestos protocol, should  
be set forth as a separate condition. Also, with reference to SWP-1 which reads: “Temporary  
drainage control measures shall be in place on the construction site during the months of November 
through April” should be amended to read “Temporary drainage and erosion control measures shall 
be in place on the construction site during the months of November through April.” 
 
Commissioner Bright commented that wobbly as they were, the story poles were nonetheless 
helpful in providing a comparison.      
 
Chair Versaw then questioned Planner Nicholas relative to why view impact assessments were 
required only when the property lay north of Grand Avenue. Planner Nicholas indicated that it was 
Staff practice to focus on views and view impact north of Grand Avenue. Although view impact  
is always important and considered, but north of Grand Avenue, staff has been proactive in view 
impact issues. Planner Hetherington added that there are projects south of Grand, particularly  
those located in the Coastal Zone, where Coastal policy require view analysis.  
Commissioner Bright added that the Neighborhood Plan made provision for view analysis north 
of Grand Avenue. Chair Versaw responded that she wondered if view impact study should be 
required south of Grand, as well, treating the entire city similarly. A view is a view, she indicated, and 



Planning Commission Minutes – September 13, 2005 
Page 3  
 
although the Planning Commission has concentrated on ocean views, but other views  are equally 
important, and the Planning Commission has the obligation to treat everyone the same.    
 
Chair Versaw continued by pointing out that the report read “While some views will be impaired by 
the project no views will be completely or needlessly blocked by this project.” She indicated the 
wording of the ordinance is “no view will be substantially or needlessly blocked.  She felt that the  
view of the property located behind the project were substantially blocked. She indicated that this 
negative view impact situation could be solved by lowering the structure 3 feet. Planner Nicholas 
responded that the owners of the potentially-impacted property has reviewed the plans and 
accepted them. Next, Chair Versaw questioned the language of the conditions, as they have existed 
for a long time. CDD-1 states: “Any minor changes to the site or development plans may be 
approved by the Community Development Director. The Community Development Department shall 
report any minor modifications of the project to the Planning Commission.” Chair Versaw indicated 
that the Planning Commission had previously limited the number of minor modifications the 
Community Development Director was allowed  to approve to less than five. She proposed that  
this language be corrected to appropriately stipulate that “up to five minor changes to the site or 
development plans may be approved by the Community Development Director”.   Finally, PW-4: 
the drainage problem. The first sentence of this condition reads: “All water from new impervious 
surfaces shall be retained in on-site drainage basins.” The last sentence of the same condition 
reads: “The applicant shall install a subterranean on-site drainage system and future property 
owners shall be responsible for the maintenance and continued effectiveness of the system.” 
Planner Nicholas responded that the conditions was intended as indicate either basins or 
subterranean system was required, and it was agreed to re-write the condition to so reflect. 
 
Chair Versaw opened the public hearing, and asked the applicant or representative to step forward, 
state their name and address for the record, and speak on behalf of the project. Dan Parkinson,  
380 Buchon Street, San Luis Obispo, son of the applicant, came forward as representative.  
Commissioner Bright inquired if this was intended as a main residence, and Dan Parkinson 
responded that his father is a pharmacist anticipating retirement within the year, and the project 
is under consideration as an intended retirement home. On the other hand, continued Mr. 
Parkinson, his father may elect to live elsewhere and sell the project. Vice Chair Marshall 
commented on the use of galvanized corrugated metal in the underground basin being proposed, 
and suggested the use of plastic, and then commented on maintenance issues with reference to  
the sand separator, and design flaws which may preclude proper maintenance. Vice Chair Marshall 
also commented on the 16 foot driveway, calculated based on the ADA compliance with access to 
the apron, but felt this was not a problem due to the 70 foot right-of-way. Commissioners Luce and 
Keith had no questions.  
 
There being no further public comments, Chair Versaw then closed the public hearing. 
 
On a motion from Commissioner Bright, seconded by Commissioner Keith, to approve the project  
with the following changes:  CDD-1 conditions amended to read “up to five minor changes” by the 
Community Development Director; PW-4 conditions corrected to clarify that either basins or 
subterranean drainage are required; APCD-1 to be amended to eliminate “straw bales” and 
substitute “best management practices”; SWP-1 amended to read “temporary drainage and erosion” 
rather than “temporary drainage”; and on the following roll-call vote, to wit: 
 
AYES: Commissioners Bright, Luce, Keith, Vice Chair Marshall  and Chair Versaw 
NOES: None  
ABSENT: Peterson   
ABSTAIN:  None 



Planning Commission Minutes – September 13, 2005 
Page 4  
 
 
The foregoing Resolution No. 05-081 was adopted on the 11th day of October, 2005.    
 

3) Architectural Approval, Use Permit, and Tentative Parcel Map – Application No. 

05-045, David Henry, 801 Seabright, (APN 060-282-010) 
 
 
A Request to grant an Architectural Approval, Use Permit and Tentative Parcel Map to develop a 4 
unit Single Family Planned Unit Development Tract in the Duplex Residential Zoning District (R-2). 
 
The staff report was presented by Planner I Sean Nicholas.  
 
Applicant David Henry is proposing to construct 4 Single Family Planned Units in the R-2 Zoning 
District.  The site has an allowed density of 5 units, but the applicant is proposing only 4 units, and 
the applicant has met all the requirements of the Part 40 standards. All of the units in the project  
have roof decks, and the applicant has designed the roof decks to the standards set out for the  
R-1 Zoning District. The only aspect of the project that is not standard is the 18 foot distance from  
the garage of Unit B to the property line. Municipal Code Section 9138.4 states the Planning 
Commission can determine the length of the driveway. It is important to note the driveway is still 
useful for parking cars since it meets the minimum length of a standard parking space of 18 feet.     
The project was noticed in accordance with the Brown Act, and is categorically exempt from CEQA. 
Staff recommends approval adoption of Resolution 05-084 for the Use Permit and Architectural 
Approval, and also approval of Resolution 05-085 for the Tentative Parcel Map.  
 
Commissioner Keith commented that earth movement had already occurred on the site, and  
Planner Nicholas responded that the applicant had obtained a demolition permit, and under 50 cubic 
feet of earth was moved. Commissioner Keith further commented that the building pad had been 
elevated toward the east side of the lot. Planner Nicholas responded the lot would be brought into 
conformance with the grading plan on file.  
 
Vice Chair Marshall inquired regarding the sidebacks. Planner Nicholas explained the 15-, 5-, and 
10-foot setback easements for the project, and the building separations, all in compliance with code. 
Vice Chair Marshall then inquired regarding the guest parking, and whether the project could utilize 
tandem parking for guest parking, drawing a parallel to the use of tandem parking for residential 
homes . Planner Hetherington pointed out that residential homes, with less density, have more 
street frontage, and therefore support guest parking in the street. Planner Nicholas commented that 
tandem parking was allowed for second dwelling units. Single Family Residences require a two car 
garage, and Part 40 standards specifically require guest parking space of 10 feet by 20 feet.  Vice 
Chair Marshall then inquired about the guest parking for Unit C, and if there had been any 
discussion regarding the parking in front. Planner Nicholas responded that the parking is outside of 
the required front yard. Vice Chair Marshall commented the current parking design constitutes a 
visual obstruction, with which Planner Nicholas concurred, and suggested that design questions be 
discussed with the applicant. Vice Chair Marshall then remarked on condition APCD-1, indicating 
corrections to change “straw bales” to “best management practices” and condition SWP-1 corrected 
to read “temporary drainage and erosion” rather than “temporary drainage”; and CDD-10 be clarified 
to provide for above-ground water retention. Vice Chair Marshall also pointed out the incorrect 
designation of the “Tentative Parcel Map” as a “Vesting Tentative Map.”   
 
 
 



Planning Commission Minutes – September 13, 2005 
Page 5  
 
Commissioner Bright inquired regarding the roof decks standards. Planner Nicholas explained that 
the applicant had  used 5 foot setbacks rather than 3 foot setbacks, as indicated in the Universal 
Building Code,  for the roof decks.  Commissioner Bright then inquired regarding the #5 drainage 
basin calculations. Planner Nicholas referred the drainage calculation question to City Engineer, Jim 
Garing, who explained that there are a number of basins, which are not necessarily equal, but must 
be balanced to the appropriate tributary area. In this case there was also a credit given for the 
existing drainage that ran to the street. Planner Nicholas further indicated there was a revised 
drainage plan not included in the Commissioners’ packets. Planner Hetherington pointed out that 
the drainage plan was overall drainage for the project, and not parcel-specific. Commissioner Bright 
then inquired whether the sodded areas shown on the plan were also drainage basin, and Planner 
Nicholas replied to the affirmative.                    
 
Chair Versaw expresses her concern regarding the parking for Unit D, and wondered why it was 
not located in the rear yard setback, but directly on the lot line.  Planner Nicholas responded that  
parking for Unit D was within the building separation, where traditionally guest parking has been  
allowed. Chair Versaw then questioned whether the green space was drainage basin, in which case, 
she was concerned that the future occupants would have no play area, and went on to indicate her 
concern regarding the amount of work done before the permit was granted, and particularly with 
reference to the trees formerly on the site.  Community Development Director George Hansen 
responded that the demolition permit should condition the removal of trees.  
 
Commissioner Keith inquired regarding Page 2, paragraph 2 which states “the project has  
existing curb, gutter and sidewalk”. Planner Nicholas replied that curb, gutters and sidewalks 
were not required. Commissioner Keith then asked if the project were approved that night,  
staff could still make a determination with reference to the acceptability of the existing curbs, gutters 
and sidewalks. Community Development Director George Hansen responded that the final    
determination was made by the Building Inspector. Commissioner Keith stated that maybe  
the City of Grover Beach  needed to draft a standard condition for curbs, gutters and sidewalks. 
Mr. Hansen reiterated that the final determination was made by the Building Official prior to 
occupancy, and included on the punch list. Any damaged or otherwise unacceptable gutters,  
curbs and sidewalks would be required to meet City standards. It was agreed to include the  
curbs, gutters and sidewalks as condition PW-8. Mr. Hansen further suggested that since the  
direction of the Commission was to be more informative, and this criteria could be set forth in  
the various development applications and advise potential developers of the process.  
 
Chair Versaw expressed again her concern regarding the drainage basin and private yards.  
The development standards indicate that a private yard located at ground level shall be provided  
for each dwelling, two bedroom unit requires 140 square feet, one bedroom unit requires 120 square 
feet. Is the ponding basin a private yard? Planner Nicholas responded yes, and Community 
Development Director George Hansen expanded on that answer by explaining that the private yard 
is a multi-use area. Based on what the applicant proposes, the choice in this instance was for 
basins, but alternative design solutions utilizing underground drainage are available.  Chair Versaw 
stated  
that insofar as City policy was concerned, a ponding basin and a private yard are synonymous,  
and Mr. Hansen replied that they can be, and continued to say that in response to the City of Grover 
Beach’s commitment to creating liveable environments,  a landscaping plan could be required for 
review and approval showing alternate design solutions to the ponding basin/yard design standard.  
Planner Nicholas commented that on this project the submission of a landscape plan was a 
requirement.  
 
 



Planning Commission Minutes – September 13, 2005 
Page 6  
 
Commissioner Keith questioned condition SWP-2, which alludes to rain gutters and  
their connection to the subterranean on-site drainage system. Planner Nicholas replied 
that the allusion to a subterranean on-site drainage system was a staff error. Commissioner  
Keith stated that in the drafting of the motion, the decision of which drainage system would be  
required by the Planning Commission could be addressed at that time. 
 
Applicant David Henry first pointed out the PG&E easements to be grassed in, then discussed the 
condition of the current sidewalks, which he indicated were in deplorable condition, and were to be 
replaced in any event. As for the trees, he indicated that photographs were available, there was  
a maple tree and seventy-five 50 gallon barrels. According to the applicant, the landscaping 
consisted of fifty years of bush and shrub.  
 
Vice Chair Marshall indicated the basins are a problem. The hardscape walkways and patios 
cover the basins. The basins are 1:3 slope, which is no yard for anyone to play in, or walk on.  
Vice Chair Marshall questioned the applicant regarding the utilization of an underground drainage 
system, and the applicant responded that he had been granted 5 units, but he only built 4,  
to compensate for the drainage. The applicant asked Vice Chair Marshall if he was satisfied with  
Units C and D, regarding drainage, and Mr. Marshall replied with he was, for the front yard; he  
expressed reservations about other areas of the total drainage plan. He asked the applicant 
if he could work with staff to create a solution, and the applicant replied he would. The second  
issue addressed by Mr. Marshall was guest parking. Lot C guest parking backs out onto a 15 foot 
wide driveway, which seemed to Mr. Marshall to be inadequate. He was assured by the applicant 
that it is feasible, and applicant offers as an example his project at 720-726 Seabright, wherein an 
identical driveway has proven feasible, able to accommodate the turning of a one-ton Chevy.    
The applicant then indicated he could take two feet of landscape area and add it to the driveway,  
If that was required. Mr. Marshall asked if the guest parking for Unit C could be moved to the back,  
and the applicant responded that the site plan could not be changed because of the roof decks, 
which were designed to ensure mutual privacy for the units. Planner Nicholas commented that  
a project located at Rockaway & Ninth, a PUD, had guest parking in front of the house that worked.  
Applicant once again expressed his willingness to work with staff to create a solution to the drainage 
issue. Planner Nicholas stated that staff would be happy to work with applicant. Mr. Marshall was 
concerned about the tentative map, and indicated that “vesting” should be removed from the map;  
there are no lot numbers; no easements: no utility easements, no drainage easements. The 
applicant replied there are no drainage easements because each lot retains its own water. Mr. 
Marshall also noted that there were no signatures on the map, and Planner Nicholas explained  
that on the Final Map is signed; tentative parcel maps need not be. Mr. Marshall commented that he 
had recently read something that said we have fence any basins eighteen inches deep, or more.      
Mr. Marshall asked if that meant the drainage basin near Unit B required fencing? Mr. Hansen 
responded that fencing was required if the slope was 3:1 or less. No fencing was required if the  
slope was 3:1 or greater. 
 
Commissioner Keith inquired if all the guest parking was “grass-crete”, and the applicant indicated 
the grass-crete cracked, and seemed less durable than marblestone, which he preferred. Mr. Keith  
indicated that condition PW-8 would be part of his motion to approve. Applicant first clarified that  
PW-8 was the curb, gutter and sidewalk installation, and Planner Nicholas read the condition:  
 
 “All curb, gutter and sidewalks that are damaged in need of repair or  
 removed shall be replaced and/or repaired to the specifications of the  
 Public Works Superintendent and City specifications.” 
 
 



Planning Commission Minutes – September 13, 2005 
Page 7  
 
Commissioner Keith then addressed condition SWP-2, in which the final sentence alludes 
to subterranean drainage. Commissioner Keith then asked applicant if he would be willing to  
install the subterranean drainage, and be done with it, and the applicant replied that he felt  
the corner lot on which the site was located gave him enough room to develop feasible drainage. 
The applicant indicated that he had other projects built two and a half years ago, and one year ago,  
and the drainage has continued to perform flawlessly. Commissioner Keith asked the applicant 
if he would be willing, if it were made a condition, to install a subterranean drainage system, and 
applicant replied that it was not cost-effective, since it could cost from $30,000 to $45,000 to 
engineer a subterranean drainage system.  
 
Chair Versaw indicated that like Commissioners Keith, Bright, and Marshall, she too loved the 
project, but had a problem with the basins. She indicated that she could not support the project  
Unless  it was conditioned that the applicant work with staff to address the drainage, particularly  
Unit B. The applicant indicated his willingness to do so.  
 
City Attorney Larry Donaldson stated that the City Attorney’s function is to advise the Planning  
Commission, not to make orders, or control what the Planning Commission does. The opinion of 
the City Attorney in that placing conditions without the parties’ agreement creates problems in the 
event of an appeal: not necessarily the appeal to the City Council, but to the court beyond that. 
Placing conditions to which there is no agreement muddles the appeal and creates problems for the 
City with respect to defending an action in Superior Court.   
 
Community Development Director George Hansen responded to Chair Versaw’s request by  
stating that the City Attorney’s goal is to create defensive positions for the City, and that is an 
opinion that he renders to you. On the other hand, with the entitlement process, the Planning 
Commission has the right to add conditions whether the developer agrees with the condition or not. 
The developer/ applicant then has the right to appeal those conditions to the City Council for final 
review and action. That, too, is part of the entitlement process. 
 
Community Development Director George Hansen then responded to Chair Versaw’s previously 
asked question with reference to off-street parking. Is tandem parking permitted? Mr. Hansen 
indicated that Part 38, Section 9138.1 does not preclude tandem parking, it describes the minimum 
size of a parking place as 10 feet by 20 feet. The applicant may have tandem parking, or a double 
garage, but there must be two parking places. The requirements for view shed analysis are set forth 
in Part 7, Section 91.7 (Residential) Part 8, Section 91.08 (Coastal) require a view shed analysis. 
Mr. Hansen further indicated that with reference to the drainage calculations, credit is given for  
an existing structure and the total impervious material. He then suggested that the requirement 
be made for a final basin design to be submitted with the final landscape plan, to be approved by  
the Community Development Director. This would assure that the final basin design would be 
included in the landscape design. 
 
Commissioner Marshall sought clarification regarding the criteria for tandem parking in a PUD 
(Planned Unit Development). Community Development Director George Hansen  responded  
since tandem parking in allowed in Single Family, and a PUD covers Single Family. Per Part 38,  
the parking is defined, and does not preclude tandem parking, so tandem parking is a design 
option that could be considered.  
 
Chair Versaw then reiterated the conditions to be added as PW-8 (curb, gutter and sidewalks),  
and the condition that applicant would work with staff to mitigate the drainage ponds, most 
specifically for Unit B. Planner Nicholas indicated the former would be designated as CDD-12. 
and included in the landscape plans, so the two complement each other.  



Planning Commission Minutes – September 13, 2005 
Page 8  
 
 
 
 
 
On a motion from Commissioner Keith, seconded by Vice Chair Marshall, to approve use permit and 
Architectural Approval for Resolution No. 05-084 with appropriate conditions of approval, and on the 
following roll call vote, to wit:        
       
AYES: Commissioners Bright, Luce, Keith, Vice Chair Marshall  and Chair Versaw 
NOES: None  
ABSENT: Peterson   
ABSTAIN:  None 
 
On a motion from Commissioner Keith, seconded by Vice Chair Marshall, to approve the 4-unit 
Tentative Parcel Map per Resolution No. 05-085 with the appropriate conditions of approval, 
including PW-8 and CDD-12, with Tentative Map corrected and completed, and on the following roll-
call vote, to wit:    
    
AYES: Commissioners Bright, Luce, Keith, Vice Chair Marshall  and Chair Versaw 
NOES: None  
ABSENT: Peterson   
ABSTAIN:  None 
 
COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS:  
 
Chair Versaw reported on the September 19, 2005 City Council Meeting: There was a Treasurer’s 
Report, Minutes, and the City Council’s Response to the 2005 Grand Jury Report. Staff was given 
direction to establish criteria to further define Affordable Housing Incentives.  
 
Community Development Director George Hansen added that Staff had further been directed to  
prepare an ordinance requiring final City Council approval of all development permits and  
applications wherein one or more of the development components require City Council approval.   
Chair Versaw indicated that directive was made at the October Meeting.   
 
Commissioner Bright reported on the October 3, 2005 City Council Meeting. There will be a 30 day 
review of the permit for the People’s Kitchen, after which the item may appear before the Planning  
Commission. The off-leash dog park was tabled with no action taken. The revisions to the 
Development Review process were as represented by Mr. Hansen above. The Tentative Map for the 
17-unit condominium development project with incentives for affordable housing was approved by 
the City Council. There was a discussion of a workshop on November 14, 2005.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING:  
   
Chair Versaw opened the public hearing.  
 
There was no public comment.  
 
Chair Versaw closed the public hearing, and recessed the Planning Commission Meeting for five 
minutes, until 8:32 PM to allow staff to set-up for the Workshops.  
 
 



Planning Commission Minutes – September 13, 2005 
Page 9  
 
 
The Planning Commission Meeting was re-convened and adjourned to the Workshop Session  
at 8:32 PM by Chair Versaw. 
 
PRESENTATIONS:    

 
A Workshop pertaining to on-site drainage was conducted by City Engineer Jim Garing  
and Michael L. Cripe, ASLA, landscape architect.   
 
Jim Garing began the drainage workshop with a brief historical summation of the current  
Grover Beach Drainage Plan, which commenced with the Master Drainage Plan, adopted by the City 
Council in 1976. This Master Plan included storm drains on Grand Avenue, Manhattan and 
Mentone, ponding basins south of Farroll, and drainage piping on Oak Park Boulevard and some of 
the private developments. Mr. Garing then explained that the blue lines shown on the map included 
in the Commissioners’ packets indicated portion of the Master Drainage Plan which have been built, 
and the red lines indicate portion still to be built, at the approximate cost of over $4,000,000.  
 
Inasmuch as the Master Drainage Plan is not completed, City staff has developed policies for  
managing drainage in the City of Grover Beach, and to prevent damage to private property in the  
event of heavy storms.  Mr. Garing then used one of the current projects to illustrated a typical 
drainage plan, explaining the requirement that a basin be capable of retaining a single six-hour 100-
year storm, 3.9 inches of water. Basins are required to have that volume in some form, and the  
percolation is the safety factor. Mr. Garing then explained drainage calculations and credits, and  
then showed several instances of meeting the criteria, using surface drainage, underground 
drainage and pervious surfaces.  Mr. Garing indicated the true pervious pavers or pervious concrete 
surface will absorb upwards of seven or eight inches an hour, so pervious systems will absorb more 
than twice of much rainfall.  
 
Commissioner Luce requested a description of pervious surfaces, and Mr. Garing responded that  
pervious surfaces, such as pervious concrete and pervious pavers,  allow for drainage of water. 
The sand soil as found in most areas of Grover Beach will accept 3.2 inches an hour. The example 
used by Mr. Garing was a situation in which the existing residence is demolished, and the new  
development covers more of the lot than the previous residence. The difference could be handled in 
the form of a pervious driveway and underground basin, or pervious driveway and two paved  
amenity areas, which in the vast majority of time are quite useable for recreational purposes. 
The next example was a project in which a 50 foot x 150 foot lot is built out to the setbacks. 
Requiring almost 2,000 feet of retention, this drainage can be accommodated under the criteria of 
the City of Grover Beach, through the use of pervious concrete and previous pavers, but this 
process is neither cheap nor easy, but it is feasible.  
 
An example of an underground drainage basin chamber system under construction was then 
presented, depicting the underground chambers, and the installation of gravel and filter fabric,  
with a sediment and floating debris trap tank. The typical requirement for a sediment trap 
(manufactured by a local concrete company) which is about the equivalent of a 300 gallon septic  
tank.  
 
Mr. Garing concluded his portion of the Workshop by stating the Planning Commission should 
consider these alternatives with regard to feasibility issues and recognize that the City of Grover 
Beach does not have City Council-adopted detailed development standards related to drainage. 
There are general policies that were part of the 1976 Master Drainage Plan. Mr. Garing suggested 
the Planning Commission take the information from this Workshop,  obtain public input, and perhaps 



Planning Commission Minutes – September 13, 2005 
Page 10  
 
a design guideline document could be drafted to give these developers firm direction before they 
start their design. This design guideline could then go through the public hearing process and on to 
City Council for adoption.            
 
Mr. Garing then introduced landscape architect Michael L. Cripe, ASLA, a landscape architect and 
principal of Oasis Associates, in San Luis Obispo.  
 
Mr. Cripe presented solutions to drainage requirements utilizing permeable driveways and pavers 
with porous fill material, with less fill required for sandy soil, and demonstrated how basins can be 
enhanced by appropriate landscaping. Mr. Cripe illustrated how pervious surface pavers can be 
utilized as landscaped, useable space and still qualify as drainage.  
 
Commissioner Keith requested information on relative costs, particularly with reference to the 
subterranean filtration system as contrasted to the paver options. Mr. Cripe responded that  
changes in the grading plan, and changes in fill material can result in enhanced volume for 
the same cost; in terms of permeable material, there will an increased cost for increased volume. 
On the non-useable turf areas, nuisance water is the biggest problem, and that could require a 
french drain system.   
 
Commissioner Keith then requested relative costs for the various types of drainage control.  
Mr. Cripe responded that he was unable to discuss the cost of the underground systems, and the 
permeable pavers represented a less expensive and more creative and attractive option, but 
everything is construction is expensive. Commissioner Luce indicated that the applicant for one of 
the projects considered earlier in the evening suggested that additional drainage would cost 
$40,000.  Turf landscaping costs could be $3-$4 per square foot;  standard concrete could cost $5-
$6 per square foot; permeable pavers could cost $8-$9 per square foot plus the base material.    
Construction is costly, and developers must spend their money wisely. Vice Chair Marshall indicated 
that Stormtech (underground drainage system) cost about $5 per cubic foot installed. 
 
Mr. Cripe pointed out there are many solutions to drainage issues, some as simple as using  
base material rather than fill soil when necessary.  Mr. Hansen commented on the nexus between 
poor design and good design and posed the question: Does poor design cost more than good 
design? As concerns long term maintenance and other elements involved, according to Mr. Hansen,  
the answer is no. The biggest challenge and responsibility, he continued, was to create a liveable 
environment for the folks coming here to live. In doing so, there are going to be some situations 
where the only solution at this time may be an underground system, and those recommendations 
will be coming to the Planning Commission from staff. Perhaps the combination of a drainage plan 
with a complementary landscaping plan will be the solution sought.  
 
Chair Versaw indicated that she perceived the issue with drainage to be a quality of life issue ; 
ponding basins are being used extensively where yards should be. Is the question “Which drainage 
system should we be using?” or is the problem that we have applied a grid that says with two 
bedrooms we need 140 square feet of yard, and we have interpreted that as being okay to be a 
basin. Should we let them put any type of retention basin in, and make sure that the code says that  
for a two bedroom unit, they are required to have a x-square yards of required yard? 
 
Mr. Cripe added that in many communities there are regional drainage basins that are used as  
soccer fields, playfields and so on. The combination of having a play area and external yard space 
space that also works as a drainage system basin does work together, but has to be designed  
accordingly. Even the regional basins require correct crowning and French drains around the edge. 
For turf, with irrigation, you need 2% (slope) to drain.   



Planning Commission Minutes – September 13, 2005 
Page 11  
 
 
Mr. Hansen commented that the purpose of the Workshop was to give the Planning Commission  
a broader perspective of the foundation of what alternatives are available. And are there 
alternatives? The answer is yes. Do certain alternatives cost more than others? Yes, they do. 
He indicated that he believed it’s up to staff and the Planning Commission to challenge the 
developers as they come forward, to show how they are going to do it, and what elements are going 
to be integrated so that it becomes a liveable environment? If that is done, the developers will 
change their thinking from their perspective and think in terms not only of what does it cost me, and  
what can I sell it for? If it is a liveable environment and has these amenities, I am going to get the 
return on this investment.  
 
Mr. Cripe pointed out the appeal of useable drainage areas to potential buyers. Patio areas and 
recreation areas can also be drainage areas.  
In conclusion, Mr. Garing stated that none of these drainage systems last forever. All require 
maintenance. The maintenance requirement is a necessity at some point. The open basin, for 
example, is not very attractive and not very useable, from a quality-of-life standpoint, but they are 
easy to maintain, so long as they stay in service. Underground systems are more difficult to assess;  
if they are not working, it is more difficult and expensive to get them to work. There are a number of 
underground systems currently in use in the City, the oldest being 13th Street Professional Building, 
built around 1980. That 25-year-old system is still operational.       
 
Commissioner Keith recalled that during the tenure of Tom Sullivan as Community Development 
Director, he started requiring “swales” as they were called then, which ultimately became known as 
“Sullivan swales”.  He indicated his feeling that it’s time to move on past that, and he was very 
interested in the comparative costs, and would like to see the City staff establish new criteria and 
step up from the “Sullivan swales” and establish new criteria. 
 
Community Development Director introduced Dana Lilley, Senior Planning Manager for Affordable 
Housing and Community Development Section, County of San Luis Obispo. Mr Lilley  
will speak on SB 1818 and it’s amendment, SB 435, which was signed into law last Friday evening 
by the Governor, and will be effective January 2006.  
 
Mr. Lilley indicated he managed up a six-person unit called Housing and Economic Development,  
with a budget of $5 million of Federal Grant funds for affordable housing, the homeless, economic 
development, and other concerns. His unit also administers San Luis Obispo County’s Housing 
Element.  
 
State density bonus law is Government Code Section 65915, revised by SB 1818. SB 435 clarified 
the inclusion of Mobile Home Parks, clarified “affordable” criteria, and is more generous for the  
developer. The developer chooses the method of qualification for the density bonus. There are 6  
ways to qualify: 1) 5% for very low income households; 2) 10% for low income households;  3)10% 
for moderate income households; 4) senior housing project; 5) restricted mobile home park;  
6) donate land suitable for development for very low income households of at least 40 units.  
 
The applicants submit a proposal in writing, requesting a density bonus. They may apply for the  
density bonus without implementing higher density. They also propose the specific incentives, over 
and above the density. The City or County must approve the incentives, unless there are specific 
adverse impacts on health and safety, or the physical environment, unfeasible to mitigate.  
The applicant provides the information why these incentives are necessary for his project to be 
feasible. The additional incentives are: 1) minimum lot size; 2) minimum setbacks; 3) placements 
of public improvements. There are also incentives for the provision of on-site day care facilities. 



Planning Commission Minutes – September 13, 2005 
Page 12  
 
 
Mr. Hansen pointed out the Dana was describing incentives and concessions. Parking space 
requirements are a concession. SB 435 has clarified that parking spaces are an incentive.  
A multi-use project is also an incentive. 
 
Mr. Lilley continued with SB 435 criteria, and stated that affordable units must be affordable for 30 
years, by deed restriction. Condominium conversions (apartments converted to condominiums) are 
subject to equity sharing for 30 years. Mr. Lilley then discussed several incentive plan scenarios, 
and demonstrated how the incentive formula applied. Mr. Lilley indicated that prior to SB 1818,  
San Luis Obispo County almost never had requests for density bonuses. The idea of their project 
linked to “affordable housing” and having the neighbors oppose it, appeal it and possibly litigate it, 
was not enough for the density increase. Now there is increased interest, not in the density, but  
in the incentives.     
 
Mr. Lilley stated that the City and the County cannot impose a development standard that precludes 
development with affordable housing. If the applicant provides evidence that a condition imposed 
makes his project financially unfeasible, and there are no findings to indicate significant adverse 
impact that cannot be mitigated, the project cannot be denied. 
 
Mr. Lilley continued with a brief analysis of the density program, and the administrative difficulties  
and frustration inherent in administering ambiguous governmental criteria. Commissioner Keith 
commented that there is no mandate for developers to use these programs, to ask for density 
bonuses or increases. Mr. Lilley responded that Commissioner Keith’s observation was correct;  
it is indeed a voluntary program. Mr. Hansen remarked that on the other hand, there are  the RHNA 
(Regional Housing Needs Assessment) numbers, with annual evaluations regarding goal 
achievement.  
 
Chair Versaw re-convened the regular meeting of the Planning Commission. 
 
 

STAFF COMMENTS:    

 
Mr. Hansen announced an upcoming Visioning Workshop on Monday, October 24, 2005. 
The Workshop is presented by the City Council at 6:30 PM. On November 14th, 2005,   
a Joint Meeting of the City Council and Planning Commission is scheduled at 6:30 PM.                   
 
Mr. Hansen then addressed the matter of the current vacancy on the Planning Commission,  
and requested the assistance of the Commissioners in recruiting candidates for this position. 
 
 

ASSIGNMENT TO ATTEND CITY COUNCIL MEETING(S):  
 
Commissioner Bright is scheduled to attend the City Council meetings for the month of October;  
Commissioner Keith is scheduled to attend the City Council meetings for the month of November.  
 
 

 

 

 

 



Planning Commission Minutes – September 13, 2005 
Page 13  
 
 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT:  10:11 PM  

 
 
 
                                                                     
     CHAIR VERSAW 
 
 
 
 
        
SECRETARY TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
GEORGE HANSEN, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR  
 
 
 
 


